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Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Project Type:    Site Development Concept Plan 
 
Meeting Date:    September 30th, 2013 
 
From:      Purvi Patel, Project Planner 
 
Location:  South of Olive Street Road and east of Wardenburg 
 
Applicant:  Spirit Valley Development, LLC 
 
Description:  Spirit  Valley  Business  Park:  An  Amended  Site  Development  Concept 

Plan for a 52.82 acre tract of land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial District, 
located south of Olive Street Road and east of Wardenburg.   

 
 
PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
Stock & Associates, on behalf of Spirit Valley Development, L.L.C. has  submitted an Amended 
Site Development Concept Plan for the above referenced project.  The request proposes 22 lots 
to be created on the site.  The original approval of the Site Development Concept Plan proposed 
16 lots within the development.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Spirit Valley Business Park  is a 52.82 acre tract of  land  located south of Olive Street Road and 
east of Wardenburg.   The subject property was  rezoned  from a “NU” Non‐Urban District  to a 
“PI” Planned  Industrial District  in  June of 2007 under  the  terms and  conditions of  the City of 
Chesterfield  Ordinance  2373.    The  ordinance  has  been  amended  twice  (2008  and  2013)  to 
amend uses permitted within the development. 
 
A Site Development Concept Plan was approved for the development in October of 2007; which, 
among  other  items,  served  as  the  Preliminary  Plat  for  the  subdivision.    A  Record  Plat, 
substantially complying with the approved Site Development Concept Plan was approved by the 
City in April of 2008 officially subdividing the property into 16 lots. 
 
Four buildings within the development have been constructed to date (Lots 10, 11, 12, and 15) 
and Lot 1A has a plan approved for construction (construction has not yet begun).     
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SUBMITTAL INFORMATION 
As mentioned  previously,  the  proposed  amendment  to  the  Site  Development  Concept  Plan 
proposes to modify the previously approved lot configuration and add six additional lots.  Under 
the City of Chesterfield’s process, the Site Development Concept Plan serves as the first step in 
the  subdivision  process.    Therefore,  prior  to  submittal  of  future  plats  such  as  lot  splits  and 
boundary  adjustments,  Staff  has  required  the  submittal  of  an  Amended  Site  Development 
Concept Plan so that future submittals to modify property boundaries will substantially comply 
with the approved Amended Site Development Concept Plan. 
 
The  original  Site  Development  Concept  Plan  for  the  development  included  submittal  of  a 
Conceptual  Landscape  Plan  to  show  proposed  landscaping  along  collectors  and  arterials  (i.e. 
Olive  Street  Road).    A  general  note  has  been  included  on  the  Amended  Site  Development 
Concept  Plan  that  the  amended  plan  does  not  propose  changes  to  the  previously  approved 
Conceptual Landscape Plan and that the Plan recorded in Book 355, Page 756 is still the plan of 
record. 
 
Additionally, no  change  to  the  street  lighting  is  included with  the proposed  amendment.   As 
such, a  lighting plan  is not  included.   Street  lights will continue to be  installed throughout the 
development as previously approved. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff has reviewed the submittal and has found the proposal to be  in compliance with the site 
specific  ordinance  and  all  City  Code  requirements.  The  Planning  and  Development  Services 
Division recommends approval of the Amended Site Development Concept Plan.   
 
MOTION 
The following options are provided to the Planning Commission for consideration relative to this 
application: 
 

1) “I move  to approve  (or deny)  the Amended Site Development Concept Plan  for Spirit 
Valley Business Park.” 

 
2) “I  move  to  approve  the  Amended  Site  Development  Concept  Plan  for  Spirit  Valley 

Business Park ...” (Conditions may be added, eliminated, altered or modified) 
 
 
cc:   Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 
 
Attachments:  Site Development Concept Plan 
 










